ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMMERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 30, 2004
1:35 p.m
TAPE 04-28

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Con Bunde, Chair

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Bettye Davis

Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmation Hearing — Laura Plenert, Al aska State Personnel
Boar d

CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 409(FSH)
"An Act relating to the maxi mum | ength of sal non seine vessels;
and providing for an effective date.”
MOVED CSHB 409( FSH) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 478

"An Act relating to the issuance of commercial fishing interim
use permts; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED HB 478 OUT OF COW TTEE
CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 35(L&0C)
Rel ating to bovine spongiform encephal opathy, comonly known as
mad cow disease, and country-of-origin |labeling for neat
products.

MOVED CSHJR 35(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 478

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -1- March 30, 2004



SHORT TI TLE: COWMERCI AL FI SHI NG | NTERI M USE PERM TS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 16/ 04 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 27/ 04 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 27/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 01/ 04 (H) FSH AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 01/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 478(FSH) Qut of Committee

03/ 01/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 03/ 04 (H) FSH RPT CS(FSH) 5DP 2NR

03/ 03/ 04 (H) DP: OGG HEI NZE, W LSON, SAMUJELS,

03/ 03/ 04 (H) SEATON; NR: GARA, GUTTENBERG

03/ 08/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 08/ 04 (H) M NUTE ( RES)

03/ 08/ 04 (H) RES RPT 5DP 2NR

03/ 08/ 04 (H DP: LYNN, GATTO STEPOVI CH, DAHLSTROM
MASEK; NR. WOLF, GUTTENBERG

03/ 22/ 04 (H Transmitted to (S)

03/ 22/ 04 (H Version: HB 478

03/ 24/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERALS

03/ 24/ 04 (S) L&C

03/ 30/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: HB 409

SHORT TI TLE: SEI NE VESSEL LENGIH

SPONSCR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WLLIAVS BY REQUEST OF SALMON
| NDUSTRY TASK FORCE

01/ 28/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 28/ 04 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 09/ 04 (H) FSH AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 09/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 16/ 04 (H) FSH AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 16/ 04 (H) Moved CSHB 409(FSH) Qut of Committee
02/ 16/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 18/ 04 (H) FSH RPT CS(FSH) 3DP 4NR

02/ 18/ 04 (H) DP: WLSON, HEINZE, GUTTENBERG

02/ 18/ 04 (H) NR. GARA, OGG, SAMUJELS, SEATON

02/ 18/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 18/ 04 (H) Moved CSHB 409(FSH) Qut of Committee
02/ 18/ 04 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 04 (H) RES RPT CS(FSH) 5DP 1DNP 2NR

02/ 19/ 04 (H) DP: STEPOVI CH, HEI NZE, KERTTULA,

02/ 19/ 04 (H) GUTTENBERG, MASEK; DNP: WOLF;

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 2- March 30, 2004



02/ 19/ 04 (H NR: LYNN, GATTO

02/ 26/ 04 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 26/ 04 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHB 409( FSH)

02/ 27/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 04 (S) L&C, RES

03/ 11/ 04 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 11/ 04 (S <Above Bill Hearing Postponed>
03/ 23/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 23/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 23/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 30/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: HIR 35

SHORT TI TLE: MAD COW DI SEASE/ COUNTRY OF ORI G N LABELS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KERTTULA

02/ 05/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 04 (H L&C, RES

02/ 16/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 16/ 04 (H Moved CSHIR 35(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 16/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 18/ 04 (H L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 5DP 1NR

02/ 18/ 04 (H DP: CRAWCRD, LYNN, GATTO DAHLSTROM
02/ 18/ 04 (H GUTTENBERG, NR ANDERSON

02/ 25/ 04 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 25/ 04 (H Moved CSHIR 35(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 25/ 04 (H M NUTE( RES)

02/ 26/ 04 (H RES RPT CS(L&C) NT 6DP 1NR 2AM

02/ 26/ 04 (H DP: KERTTULA, GUTTENBERG LYNN, HEI NZE,
02/ 26/ 04 (H DAHLSTROM MASEK; NR: WOLF; AM GATTO
02/ 26/ 04 (H STEPOVI CH

03/ 18/ 04 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 18/ 04 (H VERSI ON:  CSHIR 35( L&C)

03/ 19/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 19/ 04 (S) L&C, RES

03/ 30/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REGQ STER
Ms. Laura Plenert, nomnee to the Al aska State Personnel Board

M. TimBarry

Staff to Representative Bill WIIlians

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on HB 409 for the sponsor.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 3- March 30, 2004



M. Jerry MCune, Executive D rector
United Fi shernmen of Al aska

211 4th Street, Suite 110

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1172

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 4009.

Representative Bill WIIlians

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 4009.

Representati ve Peggy W son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 478.

Representative Beth Kerttul a

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HIR 35.

Ms. Aurora Hauke

Staff to Representative Beth Kerttul a

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on HIR 35 for sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-28, SIDE A
"#HB409
CSHB 409( FSH) - SEI NE VESSEL LENGTH

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the Senate Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present were Senators
Gary Stevens, Bettye Davis, Hollis French and Chair Con Bunde.
The first order of business to conme before the commttee was
CSHB 409( FSH) .

MR. TIM BARRY, staff to Representative Bill WIIlianms, sponsor,
noted that a nenber of the United Fishernen of Al aska had a
concern with this bill.

MR, JERRY MCCUNE, Executive Director, United Fishernen of Al aska
(UFA), said he talked to that person, M. Larson, who disagrees
wi th changing the bill. However, all 34-nenber groups of the UFA
voted in support of it. There are about 2,000 seiners in the

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -4- March 30, 2004



state. M. Larson was concerned that he would be disadvantaged
because he had 1fQ in halibut and has a 60 ft. boat and
couldn’t get a bigger boat than that.

In response, though, M. MCune pointed out if Southeast Al aska
decided to change its length to 70 ft. they couldn’t fish
halibut in his area under class C and didn't see how M. Larson
woul d be di sadvant aged.

MR. BARRY added that the kinds of argunents M. Larson is naking
will be discussed before the Board of Fisheries in the event
that it will ever consider this kind of a change. The intent of
this legislation is to nake that the appropriate venue for the
argunment to be made.

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH said the original bill required two-thirds
of the permt holders to approve a change, but the bill doesn’t
have that provision now He asked what the thinking was behind
the original idea and how it was changed.

MR. BARRY explained that this legislation cane out of the Sal non
I ndustry Task Force and required changes to be approved by a
vote of two-thirds plus one of the permt holders in a given
fishery. A lot of permt holders feel significant changes need
strong safeguards. The House Special Commttee on Fisheries
anended the legislation to renove that requirenment, which would,
in effect, |leave the issue up to the Board of Fisheries.

MR. MCCUNE added that the idea that the board has to listen to
all public nenbers, whether they are fishernen or not, was
perceived as putting a restriction on nmeking or changing a
regulation. Requiring a two-thirds vote of permt holders m ght
not be | egal.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if there was a legal opinion on it.

MR. BARRY answered that the Legislative Council had witten a
letter and the Commercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion (CFEC) and
the Alaska Departnment of Fish and Ganme (ADF&G expressed
concern.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL WLLI AMS commented, but it was indiscernible
because of poor tel ephone reception.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS noved to pass CSHB 409(FSH) from conmmttee
with individual recomendations and zero fiscal note. Senator

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 5- March 30, 2004



Gary Stevens, Bettye Davis, Hollis French and Chair Bunde voted
yea;, and CSHB 409(FSH) noved from conmttee.
#

NCONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
NALASKA STATE PERSONNEL BQARD

CHAIR BUNDE announced a confirmation hearing for M. Laura
Pl enert, Personnel Board. He asked her if she wanted to nmake a
statenent .

M5. PLENERT said she wasn’'t prepared to nake one at this tine.

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH said he had read her resune’, but stil
wanted to get a feel for who she is and what her interests are.
He asked why she was interested in serving on the board.

MS. PLENERT replied that she was asked to serve and felt that it
woul d be sonething interesting to do.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if anything in her background prepared her
to take this job.

M5. PLENERT replied that she worked at MDonal d’ s, but hadn’t
specifically worked in the personnel departnment there. However,
she foll owed personnel rules.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if she had any experience in working wth
state classification systens.

V5. PLENERT replied no.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if she had any experience working wth
uni ons.

MS. PLENERT replied no.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how famliar she was wth the state
personnel system

MS. PLENERT replied, “Not very. I'"mhoping to learn as | go.”

SENATOR FRENCH asked if she had ever had to render a decision
bet ween two conpeting points of view.

M5. PLENERT replied, “No.”

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 6- March 30, 2004



SENATOR FRENCH asked her to tell himabout her hobbi es.

M5. PLENERT replied that she loves to work on her house and
likes to garden. She also has several dogs that she spends tine
wi t h.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how many people she supervises at
McDonal d’ s.

M5. PLENERT replied that she generally supervises about 50
enpl oyees.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if she is married and if she has a famly.
MS. PLENERT replied, “No and no.”

SENATOR FRENCH thanked her and said that was all of his
questi ons.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if, as a part of her job with MDonald s, she
is encouraged to be involved in public service.

M5. PLENERT replied, “Yes.”
CHAI R BUNDE asked her to share her vol unteer experience.

M5. PLENERT replied that she had served on the Chanber of
Commerce and participated in Junior Achievenent. She has served
on the board of the mall her store is l|located in and she has
served with the | ocal Republican party.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if her service on the Personnel Board falls in
line with what she considers comrunity service.

M5. PLENERT replied, “Yes.”

CHAIR BUNDE noted there were no further questions and thanked
her for being with them this afternoon. He said the comittee
would forward her nane to the full body, but that did not
reflect any intent by nenbers to vote for or against any
nom nee.

"#HB478
HB 478- COVMERCI AL FI SHI NG | NTERI M USE PERM TS

CHAI R BUNDE announced HB 478 to be up for consideration.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -7- March 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, sponsor, said:

In a recent decision of the Al aska Court of Appeals,
they held that the Commerci al Fisheries Entry
Comm ssion (CFEC) lacked the authority to issue
interimuse permts in fisheries that they do not have
the authority to limt. So, this bill is just a
housekeepi ng neasure that clarifies that the CFEC does
have the authority to issue interim use permts in
these fisheries and this clarification is consistent
with the original intent and purpose of the current
statute and is consistent with the permtting actions
of the CFEC for the last 31 years....

CHAIR BUNDE asked if interim use permts are issued in areas
without Iimted entry, but where permts are invol ved.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied that is correct. In this instance,
fishermen needed an interim use permt if they were fishing
outside the three-mle |imt, but cane into state waters to
process and sell their fish.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS said he assunmed this was an extension of
CFEC s responsibilities that mght require a fiscal note, but
noted the fiscal note is zero because nothing is being done
differently.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON agr eed.

CHAIR BUNDE noted a letter of support from the United Fishernen
of Al aska.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS noved to pass HB 478 from committee with
i ndi vi dual recommendations and attached =zero fiscal not e.
Senators Hollis French, Gary Stevens, Bettye Davis and Chair
Bunde voted yea; and HB 478 noved fromcomittee.

#

"#HIR35
CSHIR 35(L&C) - MAD COW DI SEASE/ COUNTRY OF ORI G N LABELS

CHAI R CON BUNDE announced HIR 35 to be up for consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA, sponsor, said this resolution
supports country of original |abeling and what the Food and Drug
Adm nistration (FDA) is doing to protect citizens from BSE,
ot herwi se known as mad cow di sease.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 8- March 30, 2004



CHAI R BUNDE noted that the |ast case of mad cow di sease occurred
in this country and asked how | abeling country of origin would
hel p us.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA replied that she thought the U S. should
| abel its own beef products within the country as well. Sone
states are turning in that direction for all products.

So, if we have problens within the U S., | think that
we should take care of them and better |abeling wll
hel p us do that. As for other countries, it helps also
in ternms of tracking.

She noted that recently sone tainted beef canme in from Canada
and tracking that was in place helped that instance. A lot of
vegetables are being |abeled and she thought that NAFTA had
caused that. This would be simlar to that.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if she had feedback from the retail industry
as to the fiscal inpact this mght create for them

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said that is a federal act and she
hadn’t had any direct contact with it. Her experience was nostly
with the FDA. She said there is a two-year delay now and that is
why she is asking to speed it up.

M5. AURORA HAUKE, staff to Representative Kerttula, added that
the National Farnmers Union (167 agricultural and consuner
groups) strongly supported country of origin |abeling although a
little resistance is comng fromthe retailers.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if the Hangar On The Warf restaurant was
going to have to use country of origin labeling for its ground
nmeat .

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA replied this bill doesn't go that far
and that the FDA requires the person selling the product to have
the labeling already on it.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS noved to pass CSHIR 35(L&C) from conmittee
with individual reconmmendations and attached fiscal notes.
Senators Bettye Davis, Gary Stevens, Hollis French and Chair
Bunde voted yea; and CSHIR 35(L&C) noved from conmttee.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Bunde adjourned the neeting at 2:00 p. m

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 9- March 30, 2004



SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -10- March 30, 2004



